g;izizr Survey District Ca. 1850-ca. 1925
Bolivar
Public and private

The Bolivar Survey District encompasses three residences built about
1850-1857 at the intersection of 0ld National Pike (U.S. 40A), Bolivar Road,
and Mt. Tabor Road with four associated contemporary domestic outbuildings, and
two agricultural outlbuildings of the last quarter of the 19th century which are
the principal remaining structures in the village of Bolivar, established about
1850, which flourished through the first decade of the 20th century. The
district also contains a circa 1925 Classical Revival concrete highway bridge
and a circa 1830 National Road Milestone, part of the National Register
thematic 1listing of the milestones. Bolivar was probably established by the
Flook and Sheffer families, who operated general stores at different periods in
the late 19th century. The existing houses are built of brick or log with
frame wings and porches. The outbuildings are stone springhouses and a brick
smokehouse, while a sumer kitchen may be log under its german siding. The
houses have all been altered, primarily with replacement windows and artificial
siding and metal roof coverings. The Smith House at 2303 Old National Pike is
the best representation of the original appearance, having been recently
restored with 6/6 sash and a wood shingle roof. Bolivar's post office, one of
its reasons for existence, operated at the successive general stores from 1851
to 1901, but it was the improvement in road travel by automobile, as
represented by the concrete bridge, which 1led to its eventual decline as a

village.



INDIVIDUAL PROPERTY/DISTRICT
MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST
INTERNAL NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM
Property/District Name: Bolivar Survey  District . Survey  Number:_F-4-37
2222-232c3 (d Aarrral /ljk)«

Project: Poffenberger Scenic___Easement Acquisition Agency: FHWA/SHA
Site visit by MHT Staff: X_ no ___  Yyes Name Date
Eligibility recommended Eligibility not recommended X
Criteria: XA _B XxC _bD Considerations: _A _B _C _D _E _F _ G _ None
Justification for decision: (Use continuation sheet if necessary and attach map)
Based on available information, the Bolivar Survey District does not meet any ofthe National
Register Criteria for Llisting as an historic district. The survey district encompasses four
residences and several associated domestic and agricultural outbuildings of the last quarter

f the 19th century which are the principal remaining structures in the village of Bolivar
which at its peak probably only had no more than 5 principal structures. The crossroads
village, established in 1850, had a post office and general store and served as a commercial
and service center for the surrounding farms  through the first decade of the 20th century.
The remaining houses have been altered with replacement windows and artificial siding. There
is no evidence that Bolivar has any significant historical association with Frederick County
nor is it architecturally significant.
Documentation on the property/district is presented in:_ Maryland Inventory Form

F-4-37
Preparedby: _JanetDavis

Elizabeth Hannold June 17, 1993
Reviewer, Office of Preservation Services Date

NR program oncurrence: / i yes ___ no ___ not applicable
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Survey No. F-4-37
MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN DATA - HISTORIC CONTEXT
I. Geographic Region:
Eastern Shore (all Eastern Shore counties, and Cecil)
Western Shore (Anne  Arundel, Calvert, Charles,
Prince George's and St. Mary's)
X Piedmont (Baltimore City, Baltimore, Carroltl,
Frederick, Harford, Howard, Montgomery)
Western Maryland (Allegany, Garrett and Washington)
I. Chronological/Developmental Periods:
Paleo-Indian 10000-7500 B.C.
Early Archaic 7500-6000 B.C.
Middle Archaic 6000-4000 B.C.
Late Archaic 4000-2000 B.C.
Early Woodland 2000-500 B.C.
Middle Woodland 500 B.C. - A.D. 900
Late Woodland/Archaic A.D. 900-1600
Contact and Settlement A.D. 1570-1750
Rural Agrarian Intensification A.D. 1680-1815
X Agricultural-Industrial Transition A.D. 1815-1870
X Industrial/Urban Dominance A.D. 1870-1930
Modern Period A.D. 1930-Present
Unknown Period ( prehistoric _ historic)
I11. Prehistoric Period Themes; Iv. Historic Period Themes:
Subsistence Agriculture
Settlement X Architecture, Landscape Architecture,
and Community Planning
Political X Economic (Commercial and Industrial)
Demographic Government/Law
Religion Military
Technology Religion
Environmental Adaption Social/Educational/Cul tural
Transportation
V. Resource Type:
Category: District
Historic Environment: Rural
Historic Function(s) and Use(s): Commercial, Residential, Government
Known Design Source: n/a




F-4-37

Bolivar Survey District
Middletown

Frederick County

HISTORTC CONTEXT':

MARYIAND COMPREHENSIVE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN DATA

Geographic Organization: Piedmont
(Harford, Baltimore, Carroll, Frederick, Howard, Montgomery
Counties, and Baltimore City)

Chronological/Development Period:
Agricultural-Industrial Transition A.D. 1815-1870
Industrial Urban Dominance A.D. 1870-1930

Prehistoric/Historic Period Themes
Architecture, Landscape Architecture and Community Planning
Economic (Commercial & Industrial)
Transportation

Resource Types:
Category: District
Historic Environment: Village

Historic Function and Use:
Domestic/single dwelling/residence
Domestic/secondary structure/kitchen
Domestic/secondary structure/smokehouse
Agriculture/subsistence/animal facility/barn
Agriculture/subsistence/storage/bridge
Transportation/road-related/bridge

Known Design Source: None



M54 P11, 51, 205 Survey No. F-4-37

. MARYLAND IHVENTORY OF o
Maryland Historical Trust A - o FROPERTIES Hagt N
State Historic Sites Inventory "Fokm DOE _yes X no

1. Name {indicate preferred name)

historic Bolivar Survey District

and/or common

2. Location

street & number 2222-2303 01d National Pike not for publication
city, town Middletown _X vicinity of congressional district 6th
state Maryland county Frederick
3. Classification
.Category Ownership Status Present Use
X__ district —___ public X__ occupied _____agriculture ____museum
—_ building(s) ____ private ____ unoccupied ____ commercial ____park
__ structure _X both —__work in progress ____ educational _X_ private residence
—_site Public Acquisition Accessible —__ entertainment — religious
- object ____in process _X__ yes: restricted —___government — . scientific
___ being considered —_ yes: unrestricted —__industrial _x_— transportation
_xnot applicable __ po ___ military ____other:

4. Ownel' Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name See Section 7

street & number telephone no.:

city, town state and zip code

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Frederick County Courthouse liber
street & number 100 W. Patrick Street folio
city, town Frederick state Md- 21701

6. Representation in Existing =mistorical surveys

title Paul Brinkman Survey of Frederick County #'s 1090-1093

date C. 1968 ___federal _X state __ county ___ local

“spository for survey records Md. SHPO

city,town Crownsville state Md.




7. Description Survey No. £-4-37]

Condition Check one Check one

___excellent _ . deteriorated ____ unaitered ____ original site

— good —___ruins ___ altered ___ moved date of move
— fair — unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

CONTRIBUTING RESOURCE COUNT: 11

The Bolivar Survey District is a residential district centered on the late 19th
century village of Bolivar at the intersection of 0ld National Pike (U.S. 403a), Mt.
Tabor Road, and Bolivar Road about 2-1/2 miles west of Middletown, Frederick County,
Maryland. The district has three residences built about 1850, with four
contributing contemporary domestic outbuildings, two agricultural structures of the
late 19th or early 20th century, a circa 1925 concrete highway bridge on 0Old
National Pike over Bolivar Branch, and a National Road Milestone, #56 (National
Register). These structures remain of the rural village which was established about
1850 and at its largest size in the late 19th century probably had five principal
structures. The properties are located on the northeast and southeast sides of 0ld
National Pike and the northwest side of Mt. Tabor Road. At least one of the
residences was once a general store and post office and a creamery operated in the
period about 1895-1925 in the vicinity of the agricultural buildings. A concrete
mixing company currently operates a plant just outside the northern bhoundary of the
district.

The intersection of Bolivar and Mt. Tabor Roads with Old National Pike is a
right-angle crossing, with Bolivar Road on the south side of the Pike and Mt. Tabor
Road on the north side. The district encompasses two residences on the northwest
corner, 2222 and 2224 0l1d National Pike, with a springhouse and a smokehouse behin”
2222. On the northeast corner is a single residence, 2302 0ld National Pike, whic.
has one non-contributing cutbuilding in its rear yard. The southwest corner of the
intersection once had a store which also contained the post office for some years,
pbut it has disappeared and a modern house is located on the site. The district
.boundary does not include this quadrant of the intersection. In the southeast
guadrant, which is crossed from north to south by Bolivar Branch, are the
agricultural outbuildings, a frame bank barn and a wagon shed/corn crib, a
non-contributing concrete block barn, and the brick house, 2303 01d National Pike,
with a stone springhouse and a summer kitchen. The National Pike Milestone #56 is
located on the north side of the Pike opposite the agricultural buildings.
Following are brief descriptions of the structures:

2224 01d National Pike: This is a two-story frame residence built about 1890-1910.
It has a gable front facing south toward the Pike with two bays and a two-story
porch with turned columns and a tongue-and—groove balustrade on the second level.
The exterior is covered with asbestos siding. Two exterior concrete block chimneys,
replacements of the original chimney or chimneys are located on the east and west
elevations. The windows are 2/2 and 6/6 on the west elevation's first floor. The
gable roof is covered with standing seam metal.

2222 01d National Pike (J. Flook House; Sheffer Store): The brick house has two
stories and three bays facing south with a one-story porch with turned columns. The
brick has been recently cleaned and repointed and the windows have replacement 1/1
sash. A recently built exterior brick chimney rises on the east elevation. The
sash on the east is 6/6 with wood lintels and sills. The stone foundation is



8. Significance Survey No.  F-4-37

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
—_ prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion
—1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic ____ conservation — law ____ science
—1500-1599 ____ agriculture - economics —literature —__ sculpture
"~ 1600-1699 ___ architecture __ education ___ military ____social/
-1700-1799 ___ art ____engineering ____ music humanitarian
—_1800-1899 ____ commerce ____exploration/settlement ___ philosophy ___ theater
— 1900- - communications ___industry _ politics/government ____ transportation
____invention ____ other (specify)
Specific dates Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _ A _ B _C _ D
and/or
Applicable Exceptiont: _ A B _C D _E _F _ G
Level of Significance: _ national __ state _ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The Bolivar Survey District is a fair example of a small crossroads village
which developed at a major transportation route intersection in the mid 19th
century. The village at its height of development had only about five principal
structures, and agricultural fields and farmhouses were in its immediate environs.
The general store which was a fixture of such villages operated on the south side of
the intersection and later was in the Flook House or Sheffer Store on the north side
of the road. The settlement served both the needs of local farmers and travelers by
providing mail service and basic commodities. In the larger environs of Bolivar
were several saw and grist mills which used Bolivar as a postal address from 1851 to
1901 when the service was transferred to Middletown. The architecture of the houses

maining in the district is typical of the period, vernacular in design and plan,
Jd, although altered, still convey the feeling of the late 19th century. The Flook
and Sheffer families, who had several farms in the vicinity of Bolivar, were most
likely responsible for the establishment of the village and the appointment of a

postmaster. The continuous use of the National Road carried the village through to
the early 20th century, when automobile travel was facilitated by improved
highways. The former patrons of Bolivar's few commercial enterprises then easily

went to Middletown or other larger towns for their goods. The highway bridge is a
good example of the Classical Revival aesthetic which still dominated engineering
design in the 1920's, lending a formal aspect to the small bridge while making road
travel easier. This ironically led to Bolivar's decline as a village.

Bolivar, 1like Broad Run in the Petersville Election District, was never a
continuously growing settlement. Both areas had post offices at the general store
and offered a central point for the distribution of these services at minor
crossroads between larger towns. While Broad Run's historic integrity has been lost
to modern development, Bolivar still has the basic elements of its contributing
structures, except for the store which stood on the southeast corner.



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. F-4-37

Bond, Isaac. Map of Frederick County, 1858.
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10. Geographical Data P

p. 10/8
Acreage of nominated property 4 acres
Quadrangle name Middletown, Md. Quadrangie scale 1: 24000

UTM References do NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification
Approximately four acres as shown on the attached quad map, including parts of
Tax Map 54, Parcels 11, 51, and 205

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

namentitte Janet L. Davis, Historic Sites Surveyor

organization  Frederick County Planning & Zoning Dept. ja4e March 1992

street & number 12 E. Church Street telephone 696-2958

Frederick state Md. 21701

city or town

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

MARY ~ e o L CALTRUST
return to: Maryland Historical Trust ~ DHCP/BHCD
Shaw House 100 COMMUINITY PLACE
21 State Circle CROWNSVILLE, MD 210322023
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 £14-7600

(301) 269-2438
PS-2746



Bolivar Survey District Survey No. F-4-3%537]
Frederick County

7.1 Description (Continued)

exposed on the east and is plastered. A one-story frame or log rear wing with
german siding extends from the north elevation, with a one story porch. The
gable roof is standing seam metal. At the rear of the Flook House is a stone
springhouse with an extended gable roof covered with standing seam metal. The
door under the overhang on the east elevation is vertical boards. Just north
of the springhouse is a deteriorated brick smokehouse with a stone lower level
at grade with Mt. Tabor Road. A doorway on the east elevation in the lower
level leads to the apparent firebox of the smokehouse. The brick upper
structure is in 5:1 American bond with a corbeled cornice and a standing seam
metal gable roof. The west elevation of the smokehouse is partially caved in,
probably from a car or truck collision. The Flook House was probably built
about 1850 and, from about 1883 to about 1910 was George P. Sheffer's general
store, also serving as his residence and, for a period of about 8 years, as the
village post office.

2302 0ld National Pike (Wise House): The Wise House is a two-story frame and
log house with three bays facing south toward O0ld National Pike. It is
currently covered with vinyl siding and has replacement 1/1 windows and
shutters. A one-story porch with square posts may be a replacement of an
earlier porch. The gable roof is covered with corrugated metal and a single
interior chimney is located at the east gable. The Wise House was probably
built between 1851 and 1857, as indicated by the increased sale price shown in
the land records.

2303 0ld National Pike (Smith House): The Smith House is a two-story brick
residence with four bays facing north toward Old National Pike. It has been
recently restored and has a new one-story porch. The 6/6 windows and the wood
shingle roof are also probably recent installations. The cornice is boxed and
the chimneys are located at the gable ends. A rear wing extends from the south
elevation. Located east of the house is a stone springhouse with a corrugated
metal gable roof and a single door in the north elevation. A frame or log
sumer kitchen is located just south of the springhouse. It has german siding
and an integral porch at the northwest corner. The roof is corrugated metal.
The house and outbuildings probably date from about 1854. The associated
agricultural buildings are located west of the house. The wagon shed/corn crib
is in deteriorated condition. It has a standing seam metal roof and a side
shed extension. The exterior is vertical boards. The frame bank barn has a
corrugated metal roof and vertical siding. It is located some distance south
of 0Old National Pike across a small field at the southeast corner of Bolivar
Road and the Pike. Both the agricultural buildings appear to date from the
last quarter of the 19th century. They were leased separately from the
domestic buildings during the period about 1895-1925 by the Shank Brothers who
operated a creamery, possibly identical with the South Mountain Creamery listed
in the 1895 Frederick City and County Directory. Other buildings associated
with the <creamery which probably existed during the period have been
demolished.

Bolivar Branch bridge: The concrete highway bridge which carries 0ld National
Pike over Bolivar Branch is a smaller version of the 1928 Catoctin Creek U.S.
40A Bridge (F-4-26). It has concrete balustrades on each side with molded
panels at each end. Although it does not have a plaque, its similar design
with the Catoctin Creek Bridge is a clear indication of its date.

e g e
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Isaac Bond, Map of Frederick
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Bolivar Survey District Survey No. F-4-37
Frederick County

7.2 Description (Continued)

National Pike Milestone #56: Placed on the National Register in 1973 along
with the other existing National Pike milestones, #56 is located on the north
side of the Pike just east of the bridge. It has no visible inscription. It
is one of 22 milestones on the National Road in Frederick County.

Property Owners:

Gerardo and Karen Sandi Map 54, Parcel 205
2303 01d National Pike
Middletown, MD 21769

Robert E. and Betty L. Gouker Map 54, Parcel 51
2302 01d National Pike
Middletown, MD 21769

Everett Moser, Inc. Map 54, Parcel 11
2222B 01d National Pike
Middletown, MD 21769

State Highway Administration
707 N. Calvert St.
Baltimore, MD 21202
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